Executive Committee Minutes

September 11, 2003

Sue Jameson Room 3:00 – 5:00

Present: Catherine Nelson, Phil McGough, Melanie Dreisbach, Noel Byrne, Nancy Cunningham, Rick Luttmann, Elaine McDonald, Robert McNamara, Elizabeth Stanny, Robert Coleman-Senghor, Eduardo Ochoa, Larry Furukawa-Schlereth, Ruben Armiñana

Guests: Birch Moonwomon

Meeting began 3:05

Approval of the Agenda – The agenda item Need for Intellectual Property policy was postponed pending a visit from Tony Apolloni at the next Executive Committee meeting. M. Dreisbach added Approval of Committee Appointments to the agenda. MSP
Approval of Minutes -  amended and MSP
R. Luttmann stated that he wanted to clarify that the definition of emeritus in the minutes as “heroic measure of service to the university” is the classical definition, but here at SSU we have a tradition of egalitarianism and everybody gets to be emeritus.

Correspondence Received: None

REPORTS

Chair of the Faculty - (C. Nelson)

C. Nelson reported that CSU International Programs Resident Director appointments searches for ‘05-‘06 and ‘05-‘07 in Italy and other places are underway currently for faculty to fill those positions. There are six month, full time, one year, and two year available. She encouraged members to look at the email and advised the members to contact Laurel Holmstrom or Christine Renaudin if there are any questions.

Statewide Senator - (P. McGough)

P. McGough reported about an issue at Statewide on Proposition 53. What it does is require that 3% of the general fund be spent on the state’s infrastructure. 86% of the state’s budget is allocated by the Constitution which leaves 14% which funds the UC, the CSU and the prisons and various other entities. When this passes it will be 11%. R. McNamara asked if the infrastructure includes CSU infrastructure. E. McDonald responded that it specifically excludes it. P. McGough stated that the Chancellor was asked if the CSU would take a position on it. The Chancellor stated he thought it was politically impossible. C. Nelson asked P. McGough to announce this to the Senate as well. P. McGough also reported that a resolution was passed opposing Proposition 54 and that the Legislature has asked for a budget next year that will have no enrollment growth. SSU has been living on enrollment growth money for the past 5 or 6 years. No enrollment growth and talk of a $250,000,000. cut is bleak. C. Nelson stated that one of the ways R. Armiñana has suggested having enrollment without having more bodies it to have all classes go to 4 units. If you do that you increase the number of units each student is taking, but not the number of students, so you are in effect growing without growing and you get more money back. She noted there are pedagogical and ideological issue around such an idea, but that is what he had mentioned to her. R. Luttmann stated that if the campus is going to do something like that there isn’t much time. The catalog is coming out shortly. Changes like this have to go through the process of being approved by departments, schools, EPC and the Senate. C. Nelson said the President said it was not on his immediate agenda. P. McGough pointed out that raising the units does not cost less. 

Chair-Elect of the Senate - (M. Dreisbach)

M. Dreisbach reported the results for the Constitutional amendments election. 55% of eligible faculty voted and all three amendments were approved. L. Holmstrom did a little analysis of election returns. 72% of eligible tenure track faculty voted and 68% of tenured, 46% lecturers, 33% Status other class, 35% FERP, and 31% SSP, Coaches 7%, and 58% status not known. She also did it by Schools voting which ranged from Science and Technology at 54% and the Library 55%, Arts and Humanities, Business and Economic and Social Science all at 60%, and Education 70%.  She stated that we’re keeping an eye on electronic voting versus paper ballot voting. She stated from her experience this past election, she is favoring electronic voting. The data we have are for three years. The paper ballot from Spring 2001 elections 47% of faculty voted. Last year, 2002, we have 35% of faculty voting and this year 36% of faculty voting. There is that difference, but we are becoming more technological and more trained. A call is out for faculty to sit on a new search committee for the Director of Admission and Recruitment position. At Structure and Functions last week we were asked by Bill Houghton and Judith Hunt to discuss how to implement the one unit for lecturers sitting on the Academic Senate. They asked us for guidance and she said she would provide it to the members, but that it might need to be revisited in a larger forum. The more we look at it the more problems we find. What Structure and Functions decided were 1) lecturers will be paid one unit per year; 2) allow the lecturer to decide whether to take the unit in the Fall or Spring; 3) if a lecturer falls below eligibility, if the unit has already been utilized, then the replacement lecturer would agree to serve without compensation. If the unit  were not used yet, the replacement lecturer could utilize that. We didn’t really confront the case where the lecturer elects to take the unit in the Spring and then falls below eligibility. It all relates to the original resolution that was passed. R. Luttmann asked is if there was some reason units couldn’t be split. It would solve the problem. M. Dreisbach responded that it is hard for a person to utilize a half a unit and there are administrative problems with splitting the unit. She also stated that concerning the rate of pay, if a person is working for one department they would received that rate of pay, but if they worked in multiple departments we decided it would be a weighted factor that would be their rate of pay. She asked if Structure and Functions should be working out all these details or should it be looked at again. R. Coleman-Senghor observed that it was never a question of it being per semester because we began with the fact that we only had three units which were taken from the Secretary position which was for the year. He suggested the need to look at the issue of compensation. The issue should not be worked on solely by Structure and Functions, but really needs to go back to FSAC. B. Moonwomon stated she thought keeping it at one unit and having the choice when to take it seems cleaner and more useful. Lecturers have served on the Senate mostly uncompensated for the last two years anyway because of having 15 units, so she didn’t think it would be a practical problem. R. Luttmann suggested that the individuals who got the staggered terms due to the passage of the constitutional amendment be publicly announced. It was decided to do that at the Senate meeting. 

Provost/Vice President (E. Ochoa)

E. Ochoa reported on the budget situation and how the 1.3 million for instruction will be finalized. The other item that confronts us is the $2 million in cuts. The first step we’ve taken is we’ve generated a revised target for the Spring to compensate that we over enrolled for this semester.  We do want to stay at the target and not go over as there are penalties for going over under the current budget regime. We’ve given the Dean’s a first set of numbers.  They need to get back to us about whether those numbers are doable or if they would have problems. We’ll make the final adjustment of numbers next Tuesday. That’s the final piece of information that is needed to distribute the 2 million in cuts throughout the Schools. He said he would have new information on this at the VPBAC meeting on Tuesday. B. Moonwomon asked if the budget for the Spring has taken into consideration the Supplemental Report Language to the statewide budget. E. Ochoa responded that the language expresses the priorities that have, in fact, been at work throughout this process. The first priority is on maintaining instruction while recognizing there are other functions that are also necessary for the university to deliver. There’s nothing in the Supplemental Language that is inconsistent with what we’re trying to do. B. Moonwomon asked if it was the case that cuts to instruction will increase to about 11% whereas cuts to other areas will not. E. Ochoa responded he hasn’t gotten to the point where he can compute that number, but what is true is that the 1.3 million was brought back into the division because at the time that was what was anticipated was necessary to restore class sections and deliver the classes and the access to the students. At that time our target was higher than it is now. Since then the budget that was passed revised the enrollment target downward. Also there have been additional cuts since then. He imagined that the 1.3 million will be applied to meet all of the needs in the Schools in order to meet the new lower targets and maintain quality of instruction. He stated he need to caveat all of this on Tuesday and then we will be talking to the VPBAC and getting the input from that committee.

President of the University - (R. Armiñana)

R. Armiñana reported on the letter that the Department of Finance has sent to all state agencies. He stated this is a fairly typical request that the Finance department does every year - if there are X cuts, what would the impact be. It happens every year. They prepare a worse case scenario, a middle case scenario and a  good scenario, therefore don’t assume that the 20% reduction cited is a firm figure either on the high side or low side. Most of the time the CSU responds in a non specific ways as we’re treated a little different than other state agencies are. 

Vice President, Admin. & Finance - (L. Furukawa-Schlereth)

L. Furukawa-Schlereth stated he wanted to report on Rick’s question about the University Solidarity Fund and Noel’s subsequent questions. He stated he was not in a position to answer because he is not in a good position to know the average cost of a unit of instruction. Those decision happen in the Schools and Academic Affairs. He stated he could only give the gross amount of money in the fund. He talked to Katie Pierce and she will be taking it to the Deans and AM’s and probably the VPBAC what these dollars might be looking like at the beginning of the Spring of 2004 and Fall 2004, and then begin to have some sense of how those dollars could be used. 

R. Armiñana added that he did not recall having answered to your question, Rick, that I qualified the number as significant or insignificant, he only had an answer about the amount. Somebody else used that word, not himself. 

E. Ochoa stated he thought is was himself that said it was not significant and it was merely a descriptive term in terms of the magnitudes involved. It was not meant to be a value judgment by any stretch of the imagination.

L. Furukawa-Schlereth asked that everyone see his projection as based on what he sees on the payroll today. He would fully expect that to change. 

R. McNamara appreciated the clarification on the insignificant remark as some who are giving to the fund felt it didn’t matter. 

L. Furukawa-Schlereth had a second budget related item stated he has not made the recommendation to the President yet. He noted the utility costs in the budget and stated that it was looking ok at the end of the upcoming first quarter. He said he was prepared to recommend to the President to pull that item until such time as we think  we will have a problem in natural gas and to alert the different divisions to plan for utility impact, but we won’t ask for it at this time. It would help the planning exercise and might allow us to use year end funds to support a utility price increase and perhaps defer that issue to a future fiscal period. Having said that it seems risky, but this is a difficult budget time. R. Coleman-Senghor asked if this was in reference to the question he had brought up previously. The answer was yes. P. McGough asked if there was any information about health insurance rates for next year. He received material in the mail that suggested our contributions might be going up 100 times. L. Furukawa-Schlereth stated he had heard that health premiums were going to rise, but had not heard anything specific. R. Armiñana the expected increase which comes January first is around 14% - 17%. 

Chairs, Standing Committees - (Coleman-Senghor, McDonald, Stanny, Cunningham)

APC

R. Coleman-Senghor passed out a document titled Goals and Implementation Measures Leading to a New Academic Action Plan for Sonoma State University.  He described it as a working document on Goals and Implementation for the body’s input before taking it back to APC for a final draft. It’s about 90% finished. This will be in the context of some emerging recommendations that Vice President Ochoa is planning to make. We are trying to bring out a joining or alignment between our planning practices on this campus, the assumptions and goals that are outlined in this document and Dr. Ochoa’s own sense of how we might go about academic planning and have those three areas, at least in discussion, now in a formal document which is the faculty’s proposal to the Senate and the administration. We continue to work in our subgroups, one on residential, one on goals and implementation as we work on bringing the whole university into planning, especially  in areas of general education and the planning implications of the move from Darwin. These are the test cases of the viability and intelligibility of our planning assumptions. R. Luttmann asked if the document was old. R. Coleman-Senghor responded no, the assumptions document is the older one. The document we based it one was written in 1993 and revised in 1994. This document has been worked on for the last year in APC. Any comments on the document should be emailed to R. Coleman-Senghor prior to the 25th. 

E. Ochoa asked how the document came to have the shape it has now. R. Coleman-Senghor responded that there was a subcommittee of EPC that looked at issues of planning and they decided to first get at the assumptions as to the mission of the university and what kinds of strategies and goals should come out of that. Then looking at it again there was great concern about whether or not we had the kind of planning on campus that would lead to alignment and coordination. One of the first things we did was we looked at various kinds of planning strategies trying to tease out what was the best model for planning at SSU. There was also a connection with the Chancellor’s office which came up with a mechanism about how you can asses the effectiveness of your planning, so we looked at that as an issue. The twin tasks were to help create a culture of planning on the campus and work through specific planning models and then take our goals and assumptions and move these into the model to see if they would survive. We’re at the stage of reviewing it. As chair of APC, I’ve gone into the COPLAC schools and looked at their planning documents as an attempt to create a culture of planning, to offer up planning models and then see if our assumptions and goals would survive testing. E. Ochoa asked who was involved in the deliberations. R. Coleman-Senghor responded that it was the planning committee. He noted the membership of the committee and it’s previous relationship with the former Provost.

EPC

E. McDonald reported EPC had their first meeting last week. The main issues they see for this year are continuing program assessment, general education reform, enrollment management and it’s connections to curriculum development and the 

res life/freshman year experience issues. The later issue is urgent. EPC has begun a lively discussion on this topic. We asked how admissions policy decisions are made, what issues are considered in making our strategies, what elements of the university are involved in making these decisions. We are concerned about the balance of lower and upper division enrollments. We wondered if we were channeling enrollments toward under-utilized academic resources. We have many questions and have invited Provost Ochoa, Vice-Provost Kathryn Crabbe and the Director of Admissions, Gustavo Flores to EPC to continue this discussion. P. McGough said he had heard about GE reform before his sabbatical, is something in the works? E. McDonald responded yes, that she’s only seen a draft of the document once. Paul Draper and the GE subcommittee have been working with task forces from EPC and APC to change the GE program to deal better with the freshman year issue and come up with a senior capstone level course. So instead of taking GE as a bunch of individual courses students have to take to try to put it into a cohesive program rather than just check the box. 

FSAC

E. Stanny reported that someone was unhappy with the commencement booklet as there were classification of faculty as part time. FSAC considered the classification for faculty in the booklet which is now faculty, part time, SSP and Emeritus. We thought to just have faculty and emeritus as classifications, but wanted to run it by the Executive Committee first. We wanted a little feed back on that. C. Nelson suggested that it would be an item on the next agenda. They are also talking about evaluation of faculty that teach online courses because the current evaluation form won’t work for them and that goes back to the RTP document so we’re considering that as well. Someone also asked me to bring up to the Executive Committee if some committee would want to look at academic programs and whether some programs, if the budget cuts are severe, should be cut rather than across the board cuts. 

SAC

N. Cunningham reported that SAC will not have a chair for the Fall. We are going to split up the work among the committee members. We’re focusing on advising and we’ll be having R. Coleman-Senghor and R. Luttmann at our meeting perhaps next time and try to get some work done on advising. SAC will keep L. Holmstrom informed of who will be attending which meetings.

BUSINESS

Set deadline for Senate minutes “inaudibles.”

C. Nelson suggested that since the Senate packet goes out two days before the meeting, if people read the minutes and see inaudible attached to their name in it that they get it to Laurel by noon the day of the Senate meeting. After some discussion this suggestion was approved.

Lecturer compensation resolution of 11/8/02 – attachment

C. Nelson introduced this item and stated she had received an email from B. Moonwomon asking for clarification on two points in the resolution. There were whether the one unit referred to in the resolution was one unit per semester or per year and whether it referred to all lecturers who had a seat on the Senate or just Lecturer Senator seats. C. Nelson stated she haf gone back through all the minutes of Fall 2001 and Feb and Mar of 2002 when this resolution and it’s implementation was discussed and it seems that the initial intent of FSAC was one unit per semester and any lecturer who happened to get elected to the Senate. Neither one of those clarifications was put into the version of the resolution that was initially considered by the Senate. The Senate tabled indefinitely that version of the resolution. According to Robert’s Rules if you table something indefinitely you technically kill it. That resolution was taken off the table, the version that was brought back on did not have clarification about units per semester or lecturer senators. When the Executive Committee and Senate in February and March of 2002 discussed distributing the 54 units, there were 3 units for lecturer senators which applies to an entire academic year. If you look at the minutes there is disagreement as to what the original intent of the resolution was and what people were voting for. Given all this she asked the Executive Committee for assistance in getting clarification on these issues. 

R. Luttmann stated he could not speak to the record, but his own recollection of the matter was that originally the one unit was per semester. After discussion, the Senate realized it couldn’t afford to do that. He also recalled that the discussion about whether the compensation was for any lecturer on the Senate or only for Lecturer Senators ended that any lecturer would be compensated. C. Nelson stated that what the intent of the Senate and the resolution turned out to be are different. R. Coleman-Senghor recalled the Senate decided there would be three units which were taken from the Secretary of the Senate and that was all we had and these units were for the year. The issue did come up last year when Steve Wilson became the Secretary, but he couldn’t use the unit due to being employed 15/15ths. He argued that the document needs to be sent back and reworked. He moved to refer it to FSAC. N. Byrne second. M. Dreisbach supported the motion. R. McNamara also supported the motion. He asked when we passed the resolution that there would be three lecturer seats, did it come after the one on compensation. Several people responded that no, it came before. R. Luttmann asked for clarification that the Senate “recommends to the Executive committee” on this matter as the document does not state that now. R. Coleman-Senghor argued he did not want to restrain FSAC in it’s deliberations. R. McNamara asked if the body was clear what happens when a lecturer drops below the required number of units within the academic year - what happens to the seat and/or unit. C. Nelson said that the short answer to that is no. Structure and Functions is attempting to work on some of the lecturer senator issues of which that is one. C. Nelson clarified the two issues for FSAC – are we talking about one unit per year or per semester and then are we talking about those units going to people who are elected specifically to the lecturer Senator seats or are they to go to anyone who happens to be a lecturer who got elected to any seat on the Senate. R. Coleman-Senghor argued that FSAC needed to look at the way the seats are linked to units in order to fix this. C. Nelson restated the two issues. Vote on motion to refer to FSAC lecturer senator compensation resolution approved.

Need for Intellectual Property policy – attachment – deferred to 9/25/03 meeting.

Resolution Opposing Prop 54 – attachment – R. Luttmann

R. Luttmann stated he had heard an enormous outpouring of sentiment against Prop. 54 and he thinks the institution would find it very difficult to work if it passed. Our hands were tied when we couldn’t use racial or ethnic data in admissions. This initiative would essentially blind us to the problem. He asked that the Senate be given a chance to consider endorsing this resolution in opposing to Prop. 54. He said he used the language from a resolution passed by San Francisco State’s Senate. It was noted a similar resolution was passed at the Statewide Senate. R. McNamara asked if it should go forward noting that is was derived by the San Francisco State Senate. R. Luttmann said he would state that in his introduction. The body approved the resolution to go forward to the Senate. R. Coleman-Senghor requested a context be provided for the Senators about the resolution. P. McGough suggested that the first resolved was not needed. R. Armiñana stated that the  Board of Trustees will consider a resolution next week opposing Proposition 54. C. Nelson asked R. Luttmann to do a minute or two of context when it is introduced at the Senate. R. McNamara asked that it be made clear that we didn’t actually write the resolution. R. Luttmann agreed to make that clear in his introduction to the resolution and stated he will ask to waive the first reading.

Approval of Committee appointments – M. Dreisbach

M. Dreisbach stated Structure and Functions has approved the following people for appointment to committees for ’03-’04. This fulfills most of our appointments, but we still have a couple we are working on.

For Structure and Functions:

Brian Wilson, Arts & Humanities

Sandy Heft, Library

For the Academic Freedom subcommittee of FSAC:

Ellie Galvez-Hard, Education

Suzette Mizelle, SSP

Senate Budget Committee:

Andy Merrifield

Associated Student Representative from the Academic Senate:

Bruce Peterson

Recommended to the President for the Sonoma State Enterprises Board:

Paul Porter

R. Luttmann we’re sure this body has the authority to make all these appointments? R. McNamara was unclear about the procedure. M. Dreisbach stated that these are appointments that are made by Structure and Functions that makes a recommendation to the Executive Committee for final approval. The names have been solicited from the Schools. In some cases, the Schools have put forward names, in some situations a person has actually volunteered. The Sonoma State Enterprises, that was email that we put out school wide asking for people who were interested in serving and the only response was Paul Porter. The recommendations from Structure and Functions for committee appointments was approved. The recommendation for the Enterprises Board will be forwarded to the President for final approval.

Senate Agenda – attachment

C. Nelson reported that she had a request from Richard Whitkus to put Scott Miller’s report from last spring on the Senate agenda for discussion. He thinks it is an important item and that there are themes in the report that need to be brought out. He thinks the Senate should discuss it to insure all members of the Senate feel comfortable with providing frank and open discussion of the issues. Last time we met, we agreed if any Senator wanted that report or Noel’s report on the agenda that would not be a problem. N. Byrne explained the nature and genesis of the Scott Miller’s report. A faculty member reported to N. Byrne that junior Senators were feeling intimidated at the Senate and asked for an investigation. N. Byrne requested that Scott Miller undertake the mission to interview these members and elicit their views directly. He said he would be happy to discuss this at the Senate. E. Stanny expressed her concern that the quotes were not as anonymous as they might seem. She questioned re-reading the whole document and perhaps summarize the main points eliminating the quotes and distribute that to the Senate. C. Nelson said Richard Whitkus asked for the full report. R. Coleman-Senghor stated his opinion that the report was not “good social science.” He argued that it should not go forward for discussion and we might be able to reshape it and do good social science in terms of having a survey we could all be proud of and then be able to frame it in a meaningful way. N. Cunningham asked if last year when the report was given out, did the Senate have discussion, was any action or resolution taken  on this report? C. Nelson replied no, it was given out the last day. N. Byrne disagreed that the report is bad social science. Since it has come before the Senate it would be wrong to not discuss that which has been presented to the Senate. He also said he would be disturbed  by an assessment that reflected on Scott Miller. Scott Miller did the report with understanding that he was presenting material to me to then present to the Senate. There was a misunderstanding. C. Nelson stated she did not think it was clear that the body was in the position to discuss the merits of the report here. That’s legitimate discussion at the Senate. R. McNamara stated he was not sure of the purpose of bringing it back to the Senate. E. Stanny thought some people might be put on the defensive if the document was brought back to the Senate. P. McGough stated he thought Noel should consult with Scott and get his permission before it goes back to the Senate. And Scott should consult with everyone quoted in the document and get their permission. C. Nelson reminded the body that this is already a public document with no names attached to quotes. R. Luttmann agreed with R. McNamara and expressed his concern about what Richard hoped to get out of the discussion at the Senate. C. Nelson observed that there is precedent for discussion items at the Senate. M. Dreisbach agreed that Scott Miller should be consulted. She argued it is an important document and an important issue. She recommended that a committee look at this issue and use the document as a starting point. N. Byrne stated he was in favor of transparency and would be alarmed and disturbed at any actions suppressing unpleasant or unwelcome assertions. Bringing the document to the Senate as requested is valid. E. McDonald agreed with Melanie’s suggestion and suggested the committee could work on a resolution or some action the Senate might take. R. Coleman-Senghor argued for the document to be presented at the faculty retreat and we could be talking about faculty governance, the relationship between faculty in governance without the troubling concept of junior and senior faculty. 

Motion to extend the meeting by 5 minutes – MSP

Motion that Melanie, Elizabeth and Noel meet with Richard and do a preliminary discussion and report back to this committee. And have N. Byrne meet with Scott Miller and discuss the concerns of the committee. All information from these two meetings be brought back to the Executive Committee and make a recommendation about what might be the best way to deal with the report. Second. Vote on motion - voice vote majority “aye,” one no vote.

1. 
Constitutional Amendment: Lecturer Eligibility for Voting and Service – attachments – Second Reading – M. Dreisbach T. C. 3:45

2. 
From S&F: By-laws change to SSP rep for APC - attachment – Second Reading – M. Dreisbach T. C. 3:50 
 

3.
From S&F: Procedures for emergency Senate action- attachments – Second Reading – M. Dreisbach T. C. 4:15

4.
Discussion Item: Joint CSU/CFA 2003-04 Supplemental Report Language document – attachments – B. Moonwomon T. C. 4:30

5. 
Resolution Opposing Prop 54 – First Reading – attachment – R. Luttmann T. C. 4:40 

The body agreed that the Provost’s report would have 30 minutes and agreed to have C. Nelson set time certains for the business items.

Agenda approved

ADJOURNMENT 5:05

Respectfully submitted by Laurel Holmstrom

Executive Committee minutes 9/11/03

11

